

KARPENKO ZINOVIIA STEPANIVNA

DSc. in Psychological Sciences, Professor.

Date of birth: 22 January 1959
Nationality: Ukrainian
Alma mater: Kyiv State Pedagogical Institute named after O. M. Gorky
Date of graduation: 1983
Specialties: Pedagogy and psychology
Qualification: Lecturer-researcher in Pedagogy and psychology
Scientific degree: Doctor in Science of Psychology
The scientific degree was awarded in 2000.
Academic title: Professor of the Department of Pedagogical and Developmental Psychology
Honorary title: «Honored Worker in Science and Technology of Ukraine» (2017).

Current place of work: Professor of the Department of Theoretical and Practical Psychology, Institute of Law, Psychology and Innovative Education, at the Lviv Polytechnic National University.

Scientific interests:

- Theoretical and methodological problems of psychology;
- axiological psychology;
- developmental psychology, and psychotherapy;
- psychological hermeneutics;
- social and political psychology;
- media psychology;
- schema therapy;
- narrative psychotherapy.

Education

1974 – 1978	Kolomyia Pedagogical College, qualification – «primary school teacher»
1978 – 1983	Kyiv State Pedagogical Institute named after O.M. Gorky,

- 1985 – 1989 qualification – lecturer-researcher in pedagogy and psychology
Ph.D. studies at the Kyiv State Pedagogical Institute named after O.M. Gorky
- 1995 – 1998 Post-doctoral studies of the same Higher Education Institutions (HEIs), now – National Pedagogical Dragomanov University specialty 19.00.07 – Pedagogical and developmental psychology.

Dissertation topics (Ph.D., doctoral): «Psychological features of self-determination of primary school children» (1989), «Psychological foundations of personality axiogenesis» (1999).

Professional History

I went from the position of being an assistant to a Professor at the Vasyl Stefanyk Precarpathian National University. In particular, as a Head of the Department of Pedagogical and Developmental Psychology from 2000 to 2017. I lectured at the Pomeranian-Kuyavian Higher School (2007, Bydgoszcz, Poland).

Since 2018, I have been a Professor of the Department of Psychology at the Pedagogical University, named after the Commission of National Education in Krakow (Poland), now – cognitive neuropsychology at the Institute of Psychology.

Membership in Ukrainian and International professional affiliations: The Ukrainian Psychological Association, Association of Political Psychologists of Ukraine, Ukrainian Union of Psychotherapists the Shevchenko Scientific Society.

Scientific Activities:

- 2008 – 2020 Head of the Research Center «Psychology of Personality Development» Vasyl Stefanyk Precarpathian National University.
- 2010 – 2013 Chair of the Scientific and Methodological Commission of the Ministry in Education and Science of Ukraine for psychology and practical psychology.
- 2013 – 2015 Scientific advisor on the fundamental state budget topic

«Psychological prevention of violence and hostility in the private and public life» and the collective theme «Innovative psychotechnologies of optimization of personality axiogenesis» at the Vasyl Stefanyk Precarpathian National University.

- 2010 – 2020 Chief Editor of the scientific journal «Psychology of personality».
- 2017 – 2021 Member of the jury of the 2nd stage of the All-Ukrainian competition of student research papers in the field of «Pedagogical and Developmental Psychology».
- 2020 – 2022 Member of section No. 19 «Pedagogy, psychology, problems of youth and sports», an expert commission of the Ministry of Education and Science, Head of Specialized Academic Council D 20.051.04 at the Vasyl Stefanyk Precarpathian National University, Associate member of Specialized Academic Council D 26.457.01 at the Institute of Social and Political Psychology of the National Academy of Pedagogical Sciences of Ukraine.

Under scientific guidance, I advised 17 Ph.D. theses and 3 Doctoral theses.

State and departmental awards (including honorary titles): The Medal of Excellence in Education of Ukraine, Certificate of Honor of the Ministry of Education and Science of Ukraine (2006), and the Honorary title of «Honored Worker in Science and Technology of Ukraine» (2017).

The main publications:

The total number of publications: 274 scientific works, six (6) of which are individual monographs.

Monographs:

1. Karpenko Z. (2021). Axiological Personology in Ukraine. Kraków: Wydawnictwo Naukowe Uniwersytetu Pedagogicznego. 144 p.

2. Karpenko Z., Abramciow (2019). Phenomenological analysis of an autobiographic narrative. *Psychological technologies of the effective functioning and personality development: monograph* / [ed. : S.D. Maksimenko, S.B. Kuzikova, V.L. Zlyvkova]. Sumy: Editorial office of Sumy DPU named after A.S. Makarenko, pp. 35–45.

3. Karpenko Z. (2019). Mobbing in organizations: The typological-strategic approach. Integration of traditional and innovation processes in modern pedagogy and psychology: collective monograph. Lviv-Toruń: Liha-Pres. pp. 49–69.

4. Karpenko Z. (2018). Axiological psychology of personality: monograph. The second edition, Ivano-Frankivsk: Vasyl Stefanyk Pre-Carpathian National University, 2018. 720 p. (in Ukrainian)

5. Karpenko Z. (2018). Axiological accents of media socialization of personality. *Current social problems in Ukrainian and Polish realities, tendencies, perspectives: a monograph* / H. Bejger, S. Borysiuk, O. Lisovets. – Nizyn: NPU im. M. Gogola. pp. 80–86. (in Ukrainian)

6. Karpenko Z. , Karpenko Y. (2017). Subjective mechanisms of personality axiogenesis. *Social and pedagogical creations of reality* / Scientific editors Marija Chepil, Oresta Karpenko, Włodzimierz Petryk. Warsaw: Wydawnictwo Wyższa Szkoła im. Bogdan Jański. – pp.193–206 (in Ukrainian)

7. Karpenko Z. (2016). The phenomenon of the Heavenly Hundred in the context of the myth about the birth of a national hero. *Ukrainian Euromaidan. Carpathian dimension* / edited by M. Kugutyak. Ivano-Frankivsk: Manuscript-Lviv. pp. 634 – 640. (in Ukrainian)

8. Karpenko Z.S. (2016). Axiopsychology of human destructiveness: from anatomy to prevention: a monograph / edited by Z.S. Karpenko. Ivano-Frankivsk: Publisher Suprun V.P. pp. 5–34, 153–161. (in Ukrainian)

9. Karpenko Z.S. (2016). Axiopsychological resources of professional and personal self-realization. *Personal and acmeological factors of influence on the self-realization of individuality in a multicultural world* / for the science. edited by I. M. Zvaruch. Chernivtsi: Chernivtsi National. University. pp. 83–91. (in Ukrainian)

10. Karpenko Z.S. (2015). Normative and methodological conditions for the introduction of the specialization «psychological counseling». *Psychological and*

pedagogical conditions for the development of the educational space of the state: col. monograph [Text] / by general ed. Z. Kovalchuk. Lviv: Lviv State University of Internal Affairs. pp. 155–169. (in Ukrainian)

11. Karpenko Z.S. (2014). Axiopsychological culture of personality: generalization of experimental artifacts. *Psychological culture: types, invariants, development*. [Text] / Collective of authors. Sumy: Sumy State Pedagogical University named after A. S. Makarenko. pp. 90–104. (in Ukrainian)

12. Karpenko Z.S. (2012). The axiopsychological space of personality as a subject of cultural and historical development. *Historical psychology: origins and current state: monograph* / [Ball G.A., Vasyutinskii V.A., and others]: ed. I.N. Kovalya, V.I. Podshivalkina, O.V. Yaremchuk. Odessa: Odessa National University. pp. 61–81. (in Russian)

13. Karpenko Z.S. (2009). Axiological psychology of personality. Ivano-Frankivsk: Lileya-NV. 512 p. (in Ukrainian)

14. Karpenko Z.S. (2009). The subjective dimension of individuality. Psychology of individuality: *New models and concepts* / scientific edition. E.B. Starovoitenko, V.D. Shadrikov. Moscow: NOU VPO MPSI. pp. 241–273. (in Russian)

15. Karpenko Z.S. (2006). Ethnopsychological features of humanity: the trends of development. *Etnos. Society. Culture: regional aspect. Monograph*. Kyiv – Ivano-Frankivsk: VDV CIT. pp. 231–263. (in Ukrainian)

16. Karpenko Z.S. (2006). Cartography of the integral subjectivity: a post-postmodern project. *Human. Subject. Action: Philosophical and psychological studies* / by general edition V.O. Tatenko. Kyiv: Lybid, 2006. pp.157–175. (in Ukrainian)

17. Karpenko Z.S. (2001). Hermeneutics of the psychological practice / Z.S. Karpenko. Kyiv: Ruta. 160 p. (in Ukrainian)

18. Karpenko Z.S. (1998). Axiological psychology of personality: Monograph. Kyiv: LLC «International financial agency», 1998. 220 p. (in Ukrainian)

19. Karpenko Z.S. (1994). Psychocorrection of children development. Ivano-Frankivsk, 1994. 132 p. (in Ukrainian)

Publications in Scopus: 1. Karpenko Z. (2020). Psychometrics, Rhetoric, Narrative in Media Psycholinguistics, *East European Journal of Psycholinguistics*, 7, Vol. 2, 80-96. <https://doi.org/10.29038/eejpl.2020.7.2.kar>

Publications in the Web of Science Core Collection:

1. Hulas I. & Karpenko Z. (2022). Axiopsychological Differences of Men's and Women's Gender Displays in Modern Ukraine. *Journal of Education Culture and Society*, 13(1), 351–368. <https://doi.org/10.15503/jecs2022.1.351.368>

2. Karpenko Z. & Karpenko Ye. (2021). The value-target factors of future journalists' life-creation, *Journal of Education, Culture, and Society*, 1, 86 – 99. URL https://www.researchgate.net/publication/352504336_The_value-target_factors_of_future_journalists%27_life-creation

3. Karpenko Z. & Turchyn O. (2017). Optimization of teaching English to psychology students by means of expressive psychological technique. *Science and Education*, 9. CLXII, 100–104. <https://doi.org/10.24195/2414-4665-2017-9-15>

Latest publications in periodical professional publications of Ukraine:

1. Karpenko Z.S. (2022). Cultural-historical models of psychotherapy effectiveness verification. *Psychology and society*, 2, 97–1121. <https://doi.org/10.35774/pis2022.02.097> (in Ukrainian)

2. Karpenko Z.S., Gulyas I.A. (2021). Poetic psychotherapy as a tool for facilitating the spiritual transformation of the individual. *Scientific journal of the M.P. Drahomanov NPU. Series 12. Psychological sciences*, 13 (58), 35–47. [https://doi.org/10.31392/NPU-nc.series12.2021.13\(58\).04](https://doi.org/10.31392/NPU-nc.series12.2021.13(58).04) (in Ukrainian)

3. Karpenko Z. (2019). The meta-modernist foundations of a person's mass media psychology: implementation experience. *Psychology of personality*, 1 (10), 202-209. <http://dx.doi.org/10.15330/ps.10.1.203-209>

3. Karpenko Z.S. (2018). Mobbing in the acme period: risks and resources of an individual's life-scenario correction. *Psychological journal*, 6 (16), 82–94. <http://dx.doi.org/10.31108/1.2018.6.16.6> (in Ukrainian)

4. Karpenko Z. (2018). From the experience of using autobiographical narrative in organizational psychology: axiological optics. *Psychology of personality*, 1 (9), 96–104. (in Ukrainian)

5. Karpenko Z. (2017). Epistemological modes of methodological triangulation in personology. *Psychology of personality*, 1 (8), 7–13. <http://dx.doi.org/10.15330/ps.8.1.7-13> (in Ukrainian)

The author of 3 poetry collections: «Visions of Salvation» (1993), «Mirror of Illusions» (1995), «Dear Communion» (2009), and a number of publications in periodicals («Literary Lviv», «Pereval», etc.).